
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

CABINET 
 
TUESDAY, 18 JULY 2023 
 
12.00 PM (OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER IS THE 
LATER) COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Keith Glazier (Chair)  

Councillors Nick Bennett (Vice Chair), Bob Bowdler, Claire Dowling, 
Carl Maynard, Bob Standley and Vacancy 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2023  (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
2.   Apologies for absence   

 
3.   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4.   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
5.   External Audit Plan 2022/2023  (Pages 9 - 36) 

Report by the Chief Finance Officer  
 

6.   Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2022/23  (Pages 37 - 52) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

7.   Ashdown Forest Trust Fund 2022/23  (Pages 53 - 58) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

8.   Any other non exempt items considered urgent by the Chair   
 

9.   To agree which items are to be reported to the County Council   
 

10.   Exceat Bridge CPO, Bridge Order and Side Roads Order - Report to follow   
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

11.   Exclusion of the Public and press   
To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting for the remaining agenda 
items on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information).  



 

 
12.   Exceat Bridge CPO, Bridge Order and Side Roads Order - exempt information - report 

to follow   
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

13.   Any other exempt items considered urgent by the Chair   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 10 July 2023 
 
Contact Georgina Seligmann, Governance and Democracy Manager  
Email: georgina.seligmann@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived. The live broadcast is 
accessible at: www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
  
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default


 

 

 

 

CABINET 

 

MINUTES of a meeting of the Cabinet held on 27 June 2023 at Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Lewes 

 

 

PRESENT Councillors Keith Glazier (Chair) 

 Councillors Nick Bennett (Vice Chair), Bob Bowdler, Claire Dowling, 
Carl Maynard and Bob Standley 

 

 Members spoke on the items indicated  

 Councillor Bennett    - item 6 (minute 4) 
 Councillor Bowdler    - item 6 (minute 4) 
 Councillor Collier    - item 6 (minute 4) 
 Councillor Daniel    - item 5 (minute 3) 
 Councillor Denis    - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
 Councillor Claire Dowling   - item 5 (minute 3) 
 Councillor Field    - item 8 (minute 6) 
 Councillor Hilton    - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
 Councillor Kirby-Green   - item 5 (minute 3) 
 Councillor Maples    - item 5 (minute 3) 
 Councillor Maynard    - item 8 (minute 6) 
 Councillor Scott    - item 5 (minute 3) 
 Councillor Shuttleworth   - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
 Councillor Standley    - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
 Councillor Georgia Taylor   - items 7 and 8 (minutes 5 and 6) 
 Councillor Tutt     - items 5, 6 and 7 (minutes 3, 4 and 5) 
 Councillor Webb    - items 6, 7 and 8 (minutes 4, 5 and 6) 

 

1. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 APRIL 2023  

 

1.1 The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 April 2023 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

 

2. REPORTS  

 

2.1 Copies of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

 

3. HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE INVESTMENT  

 

3.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
3.2 It was RESOLVED to:  
 

1) Note what has been achieved with the £5.8m additional investment approved In 

November 2021. 

 
2) a) Note the impact of the 2022/23 winter on road condition and, in accordance with our 

highways asset management plan agree the following to bring investment in 2023/24 to 
£28.2m. Agree additional one off £5.6m spend on highways maintenance comprising 
£2.5m patching work and £3.1m drainage work, to be funded from the Priority Outcomes 
and Transformation Reserve, which includes the balance on the 2022/23 Services Grant 
set aside for one-off investment; 
 
b) Agree to increase the capital programme for 2023/24 by £5.1m to maintain steady state 
and; 
 
c) Agree, subject to the County Council agreeing to increase the Capital Programme, that 
a further £5m be spent on highway maintenance to provide early improvements and 
resilience. 
 
d) Agree to lobby the Government, directly and with other partners, to provide funding for 
highways sufficient to ensure East Sussex roads are adequate for the needs of residents 
and businesses. 
 

Reasons 
 
3.3 The additional £5.8m one-off investment in highway maintenance was successfully 
delivered in 2022/23 with the exception of some of the road markings and sign replacement 
works that have been delayed to the current financial year due to supply chain and weather 
issues. The additional £2.5m in patching paid dividends and was clearly noticeable in the 
autumn of 2022. 
 
3.4 However, the exceptional winter of 2022/23 has partly mitigated the effect of the 
additional patching programmes and increased the backlog of patching works (to deal with non-
intervention level potholes) to £2.5m. Therefore, further one-off investment of £2.5m will 
continue to tackle the backlog of patching and prevent intervention level potholes forming. This 
will provide additional early resilience to a weakened network during the current year in 
preparation for the coming winter months. 
 
3.5 The very wet winter has generated the highest number of carriageway potholes since 
the contract with Costain began in 2016 with the relationship between wet winters and pothole 
numbers clearly evident. Alongside this there has been a visible deterioration in carriageway 
condition with some areas experiencing sudden surface failure. 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

3.6 The experience of the 2022/23 winter, and the impact it has had on the network, has 
shown that road condition will continue to deteriorate at an accelerating rate if similar winters 
are experienced in the future and funding continues at current levels. 
 
3.7 The investment modelling undertaken considers how to address this and the levels of 
funding required. The modelling is based on using up to date maintenance costs to account for 
higher costs since 2021/22; the last condition information available from the September 2022 
road condition surveys; estimating the impact on condition on the network following the 2022/23 
winter; and using some engineering assumptions about the make-up (construction materials) of 
the roads. 
 
3.8 Based on the outputs from the modelling additional investment is needed to achieve our 
current road condition targets know as steady state. Road condition targets, across the different 
types of highways, of 4%, 4% and 14% (averaged as 10% overall). The level of investment 
needs to be increased from £18.1m to £23.2m per annum as a minimum.  
 
3.9  Further investment in road condition also needs the current £3.1m backlog of drainage 
issues to be addressed to protect the proposed investment in improving road condition. This 
and the ongoing patching of non-intervention level potholes through the investment of another 
£2.5m to reduce the accumulated backlog. This one off funding is in addition to the £28.2 
increase in the capital programme. 

 

4. COUNCIL MONITORING: QUARTER 4 2022/23 - YEAR END  

 

4.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Executive. 
 
4.2 It was RESOLVED to: 
 

1) note the latest monitoring position for the Council; 
 
2) note the changes to the Strategic Risk Register; and 
 
3) recommend the County Council to agree £5m additional provision being made to the 
Capital Programme in relation to Highways Maintenance for 2023/24. 
 

Reason 
 
4.3 The report sets out the Council’s position and year-end projections for the Council Plan 
targets, Revenue Budget, Capital Programme, and Savings Plan, together with Risks at the end 
of March 2023. 
 

4.4 The winter saw challenging weather for the condition of the roads, with two periods 
of very wet and cold weather in November/December 2022 and March 2023. By the end of 
January 2023, we had more than doubled the number of pothole repair gangs from 10 to 23 
and extended working hours. Overall, 93.7% of the repairs to potholes were completed 
within the required timescales in 2022/23. 30,000 potholes were repaired, with 21,600 of 
these potholes in the road. This is a significant increase on the 24,000 potholes completed 
in 2021/22. (Appendix 5 of the report).  
 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

4.5 Cabinet considered a report at an earlier agenda item which updated Cabinet on the 
condition of the highways and recommending Cabinet consider additional investment on 
highways maintenance in 2023/24 be increased by £15.7m. £5m of this increase will be 
funded through additional provision being made to the Capital Programme. Such additional 
provision will be funded by borrowing which will have a revenue implication of £375k per 
annum. 

 

5. RECONCILING POLICY, PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCES (RPPR) - STATE OF 
THE COUNTY  

 

5.1 Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Executive. 
 
5.2 It was RESOLVED to: 
 

1) note the evidence base on demographics as set out in Appendix 1 of the report and 
the national and local policy outlook as set out in Appendix 2 of the report; 
 
2) agree the priority outcomes and delivery outcomes as set out in Appendix 3 of the 
report and agree these as the basis of the Council’s business and financial planning, 
subject to the proposed amendments set out in paragraph 4 of the report; 
 
3) agree officers update the Medium Term Financial Plan as the basis for financial 
planning when more information is available, as set out in paragraph 5 of the report; 
 
4) agree officers update the Capital Strategy and programme as set out in Appendix 4 
and paragraph 6 of the report; and 

 
5) receive reports on more detailed plans for 2024/25 and beyond in the autumn when 
there is greater certainty about future resources. 
 

Reasons 
 
5.3 The State of the County report is a key part of the Council’s Reconciling Policy, 
Performance and Resources (RPPR) process, our integrated business and financial planning 
cycle. The report sets out an overview of the current context in preparation for more detailed 
planning for 2024/25 and beyond. In conjunction with our 2022/23 year end monitoring report, it 
reflects on our achievements over the last year, the challenges in the year ahead arising from 
both local and national factors and, in light of this, begins to refine our plans to guide our 
business planning and budget setting processes. 
 
5.4 Work will continue over the summer to refine our understanding of the medium term 
impacts on our services of national reforms, the evolving economic context, changing demand 
for services and the financial resources that will be available to us in the coming years. We will 
also consider any further steps we can take to support our future capacity. We will use our 
RPPR process to plan for the future as best we can in the context of a likely one year financial 
settlement once again. 
 
5.5 We will report back to Members in the autumn with an updated assessment of our 
service demand and funding expectations to inform more detailed business and budget planning 
for 2024/25 and beyond. 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 
5.6 Members will continue to be consulted on plans as they are developed through Cabinet, 
County Council, Scrutiny Committees, Whole Council Forums and specific engagement 
sessions throughout the 2023/24 Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources process. 

 

6. ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGY  

 

6.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health. 
 
6.2 It was RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Note the six priorities in the strategy, which outline what is most important to adults who 
need care and support in East Sussex, their unpaid carers, and families; 
 
2) Approve the strategic response to the six priorities, as set out in our ‘we will’ statements; 
and 
 
3) Approve the contents of the strategy publication and the proposal to launch the strategy in 
June 2023. 
 

6.3 An adult social care strategy poses an opportunity to align local services and support 
around the needs of local people, the national vision for adult social care and existing plans or 
strategies linked to East Sussex County Council and the wider health and social care system. 
The strategy has been developed following an extensive engagement process with both 
residents and those who work within or alongside adult social care. It provides a set of long-term 
priorities for adult social care alongside a clear response for how we will help people live well in 
East Sussex, building on the strengths of local people, services, and community assets. 

 

7. TO AGREE WHICH ITEMS ARE TO BE REPORTED TO THE COUNTY COUNCIL  

 

7.1 It was agreed that items 6 and 7 should be reported to the County Council. 
 
[Note: the items being reported to the County Council refer to minute numbers 4 and 5] 

 

 

 

 

The meeting ended at 11.44 am. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Report to: Cabinet  

Date of 
meeting: 

18 July 2023  

By: Chief Finance Officer 

Title: External Audit Plan 2022/23  

Purpose: To inform the Cabinet of the content of the Council’s 
External Audit Plan for 2022/23 

RECOMMENDATION:  

The Cabinet is recommended to approve the draft External Audit Plan for 2022/23  

 

1. Background 

1.1 The External Audit Plan provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the 
statutory audit of the Council’s accounts and identifies any significant risks. Grant Thornton 
(GT), as the Council’s external auditors, must form and express an opinion on the financial 
statements for the Council.  

2. 2022/23 Financial Statements 

2.1 The draft External Audit Plan for 2022/23 (Appendix 1) identifies a number of risks that 
require audit consideration as they could potentially cause a material error in the financial 
statements. These have not changed from the 2021/22 audit and are: 

 ISA240: Fraudulent revenue recognition (this presumed risk has been rebutted); 

 Fraudulent expenditure recognition (this presumed risk has been rebutted); 

 Management override of controls (journals, estimates and transactions); 

 Valuation of land and buildings; 

 Valuation of Pension Fund net liability; 

 Accuracy and accounting for Public Finance Initiative (PFI) liabilities. 
 
2.2 No significant Value for Money (VfM) weaknesses have been identified during GT’s 
initial planning work. Further information will be requested at a later point. 
 
2.3 This is the draft plan, which still needs to be reviewed and finalised. It should be noted 
that the timeline on page 18 proposes that the year-end audit takes place between July and 
October 2023. This would mean that we would miss the national deadline of 30 September 
2023 for the publication of audited statement of accounts. GT has communicated to CIPFA 
that, based on the experience of the previous 2 years and the resource constraints they face, it 
is unlikely that they will be able to meet 30 September 2023 deadline. GT is aiming to get the 
audit concluded by the end of October 2023, which means this is likely to slip into November 
2023, when Audit and Governance Committee attendance is taken into account.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

 

2.4 The Audit Committee considered the draft plan at its meeting on 7 July 2023, where it 
also received a presentation from GT. No specific issues are required to be brought  to the 
attention of Cabinet. 
 
2.5 The proposed audit fee for 2022/23 is £129,850. The fee for 2021/22, whilst stated at 
£124,350, has yet to be finalised as the audit has not been concluded. All fees, including 
additional charges, are reviewed and confirmed by the Public Sector Audit Appointment 
(PSAA) Ltd. 

3.  Conclusion and Recommendation 

3.1 The draft External Audit Plan provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the  statutory audit of the Council’s 2022/23 accounts and identifies any significant risks. 

 

IAN GUTSELL 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
Contact Officer:   Ian Gutsell, Chief Finance Officer 
Tel. No:    01273 481399 
Email:    ian.gutsell@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
Local Member(s): All 
Background Documents 
None 

Page 10

mailto:ian.gutsell@eastsussex.gov.uk


P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

P
age 12

mailto:andy.n.conlan@uk.gt.com
mailto:zolani.t.mzinani@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

−

−

−

−

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

Financial reporting, General 

Ledger, Accounts Payable, 

Accounts Receivable, Payroll

•

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

18

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

.

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

P
age 30

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence





 

 

 



















.

P
age 34



P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: 
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

18 July 2023 

By: 
 

Chief Operating Officer 

Title of report: 
 

Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2022/23 

Purpose of 
report: 
 

To give an opinion on the County Council’s control environment for 
the year from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Cabinet is recommended to note the internal audit service’s opinion on the Council’s 
control environment. 
 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to give an opinion on the adequacy of East Sussex 
County Council’s control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient 
and effective use of resources.  The report covers the audit work completed in the year 
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 in accordance with the Internal Audit Strategy for 
2022/23. 
 
2. Supporting Information  
 
2.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 
1972 Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The 
latter states that authorities ‘must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’.  Annually, the Chief Internal 
Auditor is required to provide an overall opinion on the Council’s internal control 
environment, risk management arrangements and governance framework to support the 
Annual Governance Statement. 
 
2.2 It is a management responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
outcomes achieved. 
 
2.3 No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work 
completed, the Orbis Chief Internal Auditor can provide reasonable assurance that East 
Sussex County Council has in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, 
risk management and internal control for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. 
 
2.4 This opinion, and the evidence that underpins it, is further explained in the full 
Internal Audit Service’s Annual Report and Opinion which forms Annex A of this report.  
The report highlights: 
 

 Key issues for the year, including a summary of all audit opinions provided; 

 Key financial systems; and 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 Other internal audit activity. 
 

 
2.5 Appendix A of the annual report sets out details of internal audit performance for 
the year, including details of compliance against the relevant professional standards. 
 
2.6 The 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion was discussed by the Audit 
Committee on 7 July 2022. 
 
3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 Cabinet is recommended to note the internal audit service’s opinion on the 
Council’s control environment.  
 
 
ROS PARKER, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER  
 
Contact Officers:  Russell Banks, Orbis Chief Internal Auditor, 07824 362739 
   Nigel Chilcott, Audit Manager, 07557 541803 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan 2022/23 
 

Page 38



East Sussex County Council 
 

 
 

Annex A 

 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
ANNUAL REPORT & OPINION 

2022/2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Page 39

https://portal.eastsussex.gov.uk/dana/home/index.cgi


 1 

1. Internal Control and the Role of Internal Audit 
 
1.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The full role 
and scope of the Council’s Internal Audit Service is set out within our Internal Audit Charter. 
 
1.2 It is a management responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and outcomes 
achieved. 
 
1.3 Annually, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide an overall opinion on the 
Council’s internal control environment, risk management arrangements and governance 
framework to support the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
2. Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 
 
2.1 The Council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is updated each year based on a 
combination of management’s assessment of risk (including that set out within the 
departmental and strategic risk registers) and our own risk assessment of the Council’s major 
systems and other auditable areas.  The process of producing the plan involves extensive 
consultation with a range of stakeholders to ensure that their views on risks and current issues, 
within individual departments and corporately, are identified and considered.  
 
2.2 In accordance with the audit plan for 2022/23, a programme of audits was carried out 
covering all Council departments and, in accordance with best practice, this programme was 
reviewed during the year and revised to reflect changes in risk and priority.  All adjustments to 
the audit plan were agreed with the relevant departments and reported throughout the year to 
CMT and the Audit Committee as part of our periodic internal audit progress reports.  Full 
details of the adjustments to the plan can be found in Appendix D.   

 
2.3 It should be noted that whilst there were a small number of audit reports in progress or 
at draft report stage at year-end, outcomes from this work have been taken into account in 
forming our annual opinion.  Full details of these audits will be reported to CMT and the Audit 
Committee once each of the reports have been finalised with management. 
 
3. Audit Opinion 
 
3.1 No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work 
completed, the Chief Internal Auditor can provide reasonable1 assurance that the Council has 
in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, risk management and internal 
control for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023.   
 
3.2 Further information on the basis of this opinion is provided below. Overall, the majority 
of audit opinions issued in the year were generally positive, with only a small number of 
instances where internal audit activities have identified that the operation of internal controls 
have not been fully effective.  We are pleased to report that no minimal assurance opinions 
were issued in the year.  There were, however, five partial assurance opinions reported (see 
5.4 below), all of which will be subject to follow-up reviews in 2023/24.  
 
3.3 Where improvements in controls are required as a result of our work, we have agreed 
appropriate remedial action with management.  
 
 

 
1 This opinion is based on the activities set out in the paragraphs below.  It is therefore important to 
emphasise that it is not possible or practicable to audit all activities of the Council within a single year. 

Page 40



 2 

4. Basis of Opinion 
 
4.1 The opinion and the level of assurance given takes into account: 
 

• All audit work completed during 2022/23, planned and unplanned; 

• Follow up of actions from previous audits; 

• Management’s response to the findings and recommendations; 

• Ongoing advice and liaison with management, including regular attendance by the Chief 
Internal Auditor and Audit Managers at organisational meetings relating to risk, 
governance and internal control matters; 

• Effects of significant changes in the Council’s systems; 

• The extent of resources available to deliver the audit plan; and 

• Quality of the internal audit service’s performance. 
 
4.2 No limitations have been placed on the scope of Internal Audit during 2022/23. 
 
5. Key Internal Audit Issues for 2022/23 
 
5.1 The overall audit opinion should be read in conjunction with the key issues set out in 
the following paragraphs. These issues, and the overall opinion, will be taken into account 
when preparing and approving the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
 
5.2 The internal audit plan is delivered each year through a combination of formal reviews 
with standard audit opinions, direct support for projects and new system initiatives, 
investigations, grant audits and ad hoc advice. The following graph provides a summary of the 
outcomes from all audits finalised over the past three years: 
 

Audit Opinions  

 
*Not Applicable: Includes grant certifications and audit reports where we did not give a specific 
audit opinion.  Typically, this tends to be proactive advice and support activity where, due to 
the advisory nature of the audit work, provision of formal assurance-based opinions is not 
appropriate. 
 
5.3 A full listing of all 2022/23 completed audits and opinions for the year is included at 
Appendix B.  The status of all planned audits in progress but not completed to final report by 
year-end is shown in Appendix C.   
 

Page 41



 3 

5.4 As stated above, we are pleased to report that there were no minimal assurance audit 
opinions issued.  Five audits received partial assurance (all of which have been reported on 
in our quarterly progress reports) as follows: 
 

• Vehicle Use Follow-Up 

• Contract Management Group Cultural Follow-Up 

• Children’s Data Handling 

• Climate Change 

• Procurement Data Analytics 
 

5.5 Whilst actions arising from these reviews will be followed up by Internal Audit, either 
through specific reviews or via established action tracking arrangements, it is important that 
management take prompt action to secure the necessary improvements in internal control. 
 
5.6 Whilst a substantial assurance annual audit opinion was issued for 2021/22, it is 
important to recognise that this was an exceptional year in terms of the findings from our 
internal audit work and was in fact the first time such a positive opinion has been issued since 
the formation of Orbis Internal Audit.  The reasonable assurance opinion for 2022/23 does 
however, remain positive and continues to reflect the robust governance, risk management 
and internal control arrangements within ESCC.  The primary reasons for the slight reduction 
assurance include: 
 

• There were only four substantial assurance opinions in 2022/23 compared to nine in 
2021/22; 

• As noted in 2.3 above, in formulating our opinion, we have taken into account work not 
yet finalised at year-end.  In 2022/23, this has included three audits with partial assurance 
which will be reported upon in our quarter 1 progress report, taking the total partial 
assurance opinions for the year to eight. In 2021/22, there were only five partial assurance 
opinions; 

• Some of the areas against which we gave partial assurance opinions during 2022/23 are 
considered higher-risk areas than those in 2021/22.  As noted above, these included the 
completed audits of Climate Change, Procurement Data Analytics and Children’s Data 
Handling, and those at draft report stage at year-end, including External Funding, and 
Appointeeships and Deputyships.  In 2021/22, of the five audits with partial assurance, 
three of these were schools which are considered lower risk overall; 

• Finally, there have been two follow-up audits during the year which have resulted in 
unchanged opinions of partial assurance.  For one of these (Vehicle Use Follow-Up), 
whilst the agreed actions had been implemented, we found continued instances of non-
compliance with policy across the Council, resulting in an unchanged opinion. The other, 
relating to the Highways Contract Management Group Cultural Compliance audit, 
remained as partial assurance as a result of agreed actions to improve control not being 
implemented (a summary of this audit is included in our quarter 4 progress report in Annex 
B).  Both audits are the subject of a separate paper to the July 2023 Audit Committee, 
from the Director of Communities, Transport and Environment. 

 
Key Financial Systems 

 
5.7 Given the substantial values involved, each year a significant proportion of our time is 
spent reviewing the Council’s key financial systems, both corporate and departmental. Of 
those audits completed during 2022/23, all resulted in either substantial or reasonable 
assurance being provided over the control environment (the audit of Accounts Payable audit 
was at draft report stage at the end of the year and will be reported in our quarter 1 progress 
report). 
 
 
 

Page 42



 4 

Other Internal Audit Activity  
 
5.8 During 2022/23, Internal Audit has continued to provide advice, support and 
independent challenge to the organisation on risk, governance and internal control matters 
across a range of areas.  These include:  
 

• Managing Back Office Systems (MBOS) programme 

• Support in relation to cash payments to Ukrainian guests  

• Adult Social Care ‘Being Digital’ Programme Governance Arrangements 

• The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities deep-dive into the South-
East Local Enterprise Partnership  

• Sea Change Sussex  

• Highways Maintenance Contract Reprocurement 

• UK Community Renewal Fund 
 
And attendance at, and support to: 

 

• Statutory Officers’ Group 

• Business Services (BS) Departmental Management Team 

• Finance Management Team 

• BSD Business Partners Group 

• Pension Board and Pension Committee 
 
5.9 As well as actively contributing to, and advising these groups, we utilise the intelligence 
gained from the discussions to inform our own current and future work programmes to help 
ensure our work continues to focus on the most important risk areas. 
 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
 
5.10 During 2022/23, the Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team continued to deliver both 
reactive and proactive fraud services across the organisation.  Details of all counter fraud and 
investigatory activity for the year, both proactive and reactive, have been summarised within 
our quarterly progress reports and also a separate Counter Fraud Annual Report due to be 
presented alongside this Internal Audit annual report.  Where relevant, the outcomes from this 
work have also been used to inform our annual internal audit opinion and future audit plans. 
 

Amendments to the Audit Plan 
 
5.11 In accordance with proper professional practice, the Internal Audit plan for the year 
was kept under regular review to ensure that the service continued to focus its resources in 
the highest priority areas based on an assessment of risk.  All audits added to and removed 
from the plan during the year are provided in Appendix D.  
 
6. Internal Audit Performance 
 
6.1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the internal audit service to be 
reviewed annually against the Standards, supplemented with a full and independent external 
assessment at least every five years. The following paragraphs provide a summary of our 
performance during 2022/23, including the results of our latest independent PSIAS 
assessment, an update on our Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and the year 
end results against our agreed targets. 
 

PSIAS 
 
6.2 The Standards cover the following aspects of internal audit, all of which were 
independently assessed during late 2022 by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors: 

Page 43



 5 

 

• Purpose, authority and responsibility;  

• Independence and objectivity; 

• Proficiency and due professional care;  

• Quality assurance and improvement programme;  

• Managing the internal audit activity;  

• Nature of work; 

• Engagement planning;  

• Performing the engagement;  

• Communicating results; 

• Monitoring progress; and 

• Communicating the acceptance of risks.  
 

6.3 As reported to Audit Committee in March 2023, Orbis Internal Audit has been assessed 
as achieving the highest level of conformance available against professional standards, with 
no areas of non-compliance identified.   
 

Key Service Targets 
 
6.4 Performance against our previously agreed service targets is set out in Appendix A.  
Overall, client satisfaction levels remain high, demonstrated through the results of our post 
audit questionnaires, discussions with key stakeholders throughout the year and annual 
consultation meetings with Chief Officers.   
 
6.5 Internal Audit will continue to liaise with the Council’s external auditors (Grant 
Thornton) to ensure that the Council obtains maximum value from the combined audit 
resources available. 
 
6.6 In addition to this annual summary, CMT and the Audit Committee will continue to 
receive performance information on Internal Audit throughout the year as part of our quarterly 
progress reports and corporate performance monitoring arrangements. 
 

Page 44



 6 

Appendix A 

Internal Audit Performance Indicators 2022/23 
 

Aspect of 
Service 

Orbis IA 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target RAG 
Score 

Actual 
Performance 

Quality 
 

Annual Audit Plan 
agreed by Audit 
Committee 

By end 
April 

G Approved by Audit 
Committee in March 
2023 

Annual Audit Report 
and Opinion 
 

By end 
July 

G To be approved by Audit 
Committee in July 2023 

Customer 
Satisfaction Levels 

90% 
satisfied 
 

G 100% 

Productivity 
and 
Process 
Efficiency 

Audit Plan – 
completion to draft 
report stage 

90% G 94.4% 

Compliance 
with 
Professiona
l Standards 

Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 

Conforms G 
 

Dec 2022 - External 
Quality Assurance 
completed by the 
Chartered Institute of 
Internal Auditors (IIA).  
Orbis Internal Audit 
assessed as achieving 
the highest level of 
conformance available 
against professional 
standards with no areas 
of non-compliance 
identified, and therefore 
no formal 
recommendations for 
improvement arising. In 
summary the service 
was assessed as: 
 
• Excellent in: 
Reflection of the 
Standards 
Focus on performance, 
risk and adding value 
• Good in: 
Operating with efficiency 
Quality Assurance and 
Improvement 
Programme 
• Satisfactory in: 
Coordinating and 
maximising assurance 

Page 45



 7 

Aspect of 
Service 

Orbis IA 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target RAG 
Score 

Actual 
Performance 

 Relevant legislation 
such as the Police 
and Criminal 
Evidence Act, 
Criminal Procedures 
and Investigations 
Act  

Conforms G 
 

No evidence of non-
compliance identified. 

Outcome 
and degree 
of influence 

Implementation of 
management actions 
agreed in response 
to audit findings 

97% for 
high 
priority 
agreed 
actions 

G 100% 

Our staff Professionally 
Qualified/Accredited 
 
 

80% G 93%2 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 Includes part-qualified staff and those undertaking professional training 

Page 46



 8 

Appendix B 
 
Summary of opinions for Internal Audit final reports issued during 2022/23  
 
Substantial Assurance: 
(Explanation of assurance levels provided at the bottom of this document) 
 

Audit Title Department 

Post Brexit Information Governance  Corporate 

IT Asset Procurement (Value for Money)  Corporate 

Dallington Church of England Primary School  CSD 

Elective Home Education  CSD 

 
Reasonable Assurance: 
 

Audit Title Department 

Pension Fund Administration – People, Processes and Systems  BSD 

Pension Fund Governance BSD 

Commissioning and Delivery of Property Projects Follow-Up  BSD 

IT Strategic and Operational Risk Management  BSD 

Building Security Follow Up BSD 

Network Access Controls  BSD 

Building Condition Asset Management Follow-Up BSD 

Pension Fund I-Connect Application Controls audit BSD 

Meta Compliance IT Application Controls audit BSD 

Accounts Receivable BSD 

Payroll BSD 

Capital Project Management  Corporate 

Electronic Signatures  Corporate 

Use of Consultants Corporate 

Home Care Contract Management Follow-Up  ASCH 

Direct Payments Follow Up  ASCH 

Public Health Grant Governance Arrangements ASCH 

LCS/Controcc  CSD 

Maynards Green Primary School CSD 

Westfield School CSD 

South Malling CE Primary School and Nursery CSD 

Little Horsted CE Primary School CSD 

Tollgate Community Primary School CSD 

 
Partial Assurance: 
 

Audit Title Department 

Procurement Data Analytics BSD / 
Corporate 

Climate Change Corporate 

Childrens Data Handling CSD 

Highways Contract Management Group Cultural Compliance Follow Up CET 

Council Vehicle Use Follow-Up CET 

 
Minimal Assurance: 
 

Audit Title Department 

None  

 

Page 47



 9 

Non-Opinion: 
 

Audit Title Department 

Property Asset Management System Replacement BSD 

Adult Weight Management Grant Certification ASCH 

MBOS Programme Support Corporate 

MBOS Key Controls Corporate 

MBOS Reporting Arrangements Corporate 

MBOS Data Cleansing and Migration Corporate 

MBOS Security, Roles and Permissions Corporate 

Contain Outbreak Management Fund Grant Certification ASCH 

European Social Fund Transform Project Grant Certification CSD 

Supporting Families Programme Grant Certification CSD 

Department for Levelling-Up, Housing and Communities Deep-Dive of the 
South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) 

CET 

Sea Change Sussex CET 

Local Transport Capital Block Funding (incl. Traffic Signals) Grant 
Certification 

CET 

UK Community Renewal Fund CET 

Highways Contract Reprocurement CET  

Bus Services Operators Grant CET 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 10 

Appendix C 
 
2022/23 Audit Plan - Audits in Progress at Year-End  
 

Audit Title Planned/ 
Unplanned 

Department Status 

Pension Fund Investments and 
Accounting 

Planned BSD Draft report 

Pension Fund Cash Management Planned  BSD Draft report 

Pension Fund Cyber Security 
Arrangements 

Planned BSD Draft report 

Techforge IT Application Controls Planned BSD Draft report 

Procurement of IT Systems Planned BSD Draft report 

Accounts Payable Planned BSD Draft report 

Pension Fund – Administration of Pension 
Benefit Payments 

Planned BSD Audit 
fieldwork 

Cyber Security Planned  Corporate Draft report 

Health and Safety Planned Corporate Draft report 

Information Governance (Subject Access 
Requests and Freedom of Information 
Reporting Arrangements) 

Planned Corporate Audit 
fieldwork 

Mobile Device Management Planned  Corporate Audit 
fieldwork 

Corporate Governance Planned Corporate Audit 
fieldwork 

Contract Management Planned Corporate  Audit 
fieldwork 

Appointeeships and Deputyships Unplanned ASCH Draft report 

Adults Safeguarding Planned ASCH Draft report 

External Funding Planned CET Draft report 

Home to School Transport Follow-Up Planned CET Audit 
fieldwork 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 11 

Appendix D 
Audits added to and removed from the plan during 2022/23  
 
Audits Added: 
 

Audit Title 

Reporting Services Database 

Cash Payments to Ukrainian Guests 

Being Digital Programme Governance Arrangements 

Broadband Grant 

Covid Bus Services Support Grant 

Additional Dedicated Home to School and College Transport Grant 

DfT Local Transport Authority Covid-19 Bus Service Support Grant Restart (Revenue) 
Grant Certification  

Sea Change Sussex 

Department for Levelling-Up, Housing and Communities Deep-Dive into the South-East 
Local Enterprise Partnership 

Biodiversity Net Gain Grant 

 
Audits Removed/Deferred: 
 

Audit Title 

Financial and Benefits Assessments 

Beacon/Grove Park Project Management 

Adult Social Care Funding Reform 

Waste Management 

Kofax IT Application Controls  

Proactis IT Application Controls 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 12 

Appendix E 
 
Audit Opinions and Definitions 

Opinion Definition 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage key 
risks to the achievement of system or service objectives. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Most controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage 
key risks to the achievement of system or service objectives. 

Partial 
Assurance 

There are weaknesses in the system of control and/or the level of non-
compliance is such as to put the achievement of the system or service 
objectives at risk. 

Minimal 
Assurance 

Controls are generally weak or non-existent, leaving the system open to 
the risk of significant error or fraud.  There is a high risk to the ability of 
the system/service to meet its objectives. 

 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: 
 
Date: 

Cabinet 
 
18 July 2023 
 

Report By: Chief Operating Officer 
 

Title of Report: Ashdown Forest Trust Fund 
 

Purpose of Report: To inform Cabinet of the movements on the Trust Fund during 
2022/23 and the closing position as at 31 March 2023. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1).  Cabinet is recommended to note the report and the Ashdown Forest’s Trust Income 

and Expenditure Account for 2023/23 and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023. 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1. The Ashdown Forest Trust, a registered charity, was set out by declaration of Trust in 

1988. East Sussex County Council is the trustee and agrees grants made to the 
Ashdown Forest Conservators, from the Ashdown Forest Trust Fund. 

 
2. Supporting Information  

 
2021/22 Accounts  

2.1. Subsequent to the 2021/22 accounts being approved, the independent Examination 
process has now been completed in accordance with Section 145 of the Charities Act 
2011. 

2.2. The Examiner’s report is attached as Appendix A. It does not identify any issues that 
require any further action by the Council as the trustees. 

 

2022/23 Accounts 

2.3. The Trust’s Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet are set out in the 
attached Appendix B. The Income and Expenditure Account shows a surplus in 2022/23 
of £5,019.  

2.4. The main sources of income to the Trust are rental income from the Royal Ashdown Golf 
Club at £70,000 per annum and bank interest, which has seen a significant increase, 
reflecting the rise in base rates. 

2.5. The expenditure primarily relates to the £65,100 grant paid to the Ashdown Forest 
Conservators, with  remaining expenditure being audit fees. 

2.6. The accumulative General Reserve totalled £172,088 at 31 March 2023. 

2.7. A formal annual report and statement of accounts will be compiled in accordance with 
the Charity Commission’s Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) by the end of 
January 2024, once the Independent Examiner report has been received. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



3. Conclusion and Recommendation 

3.1. The trust made an operating surplus of £5,019 during 2022/23. The General Reserve as 
at 31 March 2023 amounts to £172,088. This fund is available to finance expenditure 
which meets the Trust’s objectives. 

3.2. Cabinet is recommended to note the final accounts for the Ashdown Forest Trust.  

 

 

ROS PARKER 
Chief Operating Officer 

 

Contact Officer: Andy Fowler 
Tel No. 07825 552640 
Email: Andy.fowler@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
LOCAL MEMBERS 
Galley, Howell, Lunn & Georgia Taylor 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 54

mailto:Andy.fowler@eastsussex.gov.uk


          Appendix A 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



          
Appendix B 
 

                                 ASHDOWN FOREST TRUST  

        

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the year ended 
31 March 2023  

   
2021/22 Income 2022/23 

      

£   £ 

(70,000) Rent of Golf Course (70,000) 

(16) Bank Interest  (659) 

(70,016)   (70,659) 

      

      

  
Less Expenditure 
   

65,100  Conservators of Ashdown Forest - Grants 65,100  

540  Fees 540  

(4,376) (Surplus)/Deficit (5,019) 

      

 
 
 

 Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023  

   
2021/22   2022/23 

      

       £          £ 

      

1,200,000  Fixed Assets: Land and Buildings 1,200,000  

      

  Current Assets:   

167,709     Cash at Bank 172,728  

      

  Current Liabilities:   

(540)   Sundry creditors (540) 

      

1,367,169   1,372,188  

      

  Representing:   

      

  Reserves:   

1,200,100    Endowment Fund 1,200,100  

167,069   General Reserve 172,088  

      

1,367,169   1,372,188  

      

 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2023
	5 External Audit Plan 2022/2023
	2022-23 East Sussex County Council Draft Audit Plan
	Slide 1: East Sussex County Council Audit Plan 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Key matters
	Slide 4: Key matters
	Slide 5: Introduction and headlines
	Slide 6: Introduction and headlines
	Slide 7: Significant risks identified
	Slide 8: Significant risks identified (continued)
	Slide 9: Significant risks identified (continued)
	Slide 10: Significant risks identified (continued)
	Slide 11: Significant risks identified (continued)
	Slide 12: Other risks identified
	Slide 13: Other matters
	Slide 14: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 15: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 16: IT audit strategy
	Slide 17: Value for Money arrangements
	Slide 18: Audit logistics and team 
	Slide 19: Audit fees and updated Auditing Standards including ISA 315 Revised
	Slide 20: Audit fees
	Slide 21: Audit fees – detailed analysis
	Slide 22: Independence and non-audit services
	Slide 23: Independence and non-audit services
	Slide 24: Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance
	Slide 25


	6 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2022/23
	Annex A

	7 Ashdown Forest Trust Fund 2022/23

